Central Bedfordshire
Council
Priory House
Monks Walk
Chicksands,
Shefford SG17 5TQ

This meeting
may be filmed.*

please ask for

Rebecca Preen

direct line

0300 300 4193

date

31 December 2015

NOTICE OF MEETING
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE
Date & Time

Thursday, 14 January 2016 10.00 a.m.
Venue at

Council Chamber, Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford
Richard Carr
Chief Executive
To:
The Chairman and Members of the SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE:
Cllrs D McVicar (Chairman), B Saunders (Vice-Chairman), D Bowater, F Firth,
C C Gomm, Ms A M W Graham, J Kane, K C Matthews and R Morris

[Named Substitutes:
P Hollick, R W Johnstone, T Nicols, D Shelvey and I Shingler]
All other Members of the Council - on request

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE WELCOME TO ATTEND THIS
MEETING

*Please note that phones and other equipment
may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog
from this meeting. No part of the meeting room is
exempt from public filming.
The use of arising images or recordings is not
under the Council’s control.

AGENDA

1.

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence and notification of substitute members

2.

Members' Interests
To receive from Members any declarations of interest and of any political whip
in relation to any agenda item.

3.

Chairman's Announcements and Communications
To receive any announcements from the Chairman and any matters of
communication.

4.

Minutes
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the Sustainable
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 10 December 2015
and to note actions taken since that meeting.

5.

Petitions
To receive petitions from members of the public in accordance with the Public
Participation Procedure as set out in Annex 2 of Part A4 of the Constitution.

6.

Questions, Statements or Deputations
To receive any questions, statements or deputations from members of the
public in accordance with the Public Participation Procedure as set out in
Annex 1 of part A4 of the Constitution.

7.

Call-In
To consider any decision of the Executive referred to this Committee for review
in accordance with Procedure Rule 10.10 of Part D2.

8.

Requested Items
To consider any items referred to the Committee at the request of a Member
under Procedure Rule 3.1 of Part D2 of the Constitution.

REPORTS
Item
9

Subject

Page Nos.

Executive Members Updates

* Verbal

To receive a brief verbal update from the Executive
Member for Community Services and the Executive
Member for Regeneration.
10

Community Safety Partnership Priorities 2016 - 2019

*

11 - 22

To consider and comment upon the Community Safety
Partnership Strategic Assessment Priorities identified for
Central Bedfordshire for 2016 - 2019.
11

Development Strategy Position Update

* Verbal

To receive information regarding progress on the Council’s
Development Strategy.
12

Planning Enforcement Review

* To follow

To receive the report and recommendations of the
planning enforcement enquiry in order to endorse the
recommendations and seek a response from the Executive
as to their application.
13

Draft Budget, Capital and MTFP 2016/17

*

23 - 30

*

31 - 36

To consider the draft Budget, updated Medium Term
Financial Plan and Capital Programme pertaining to the
Regeneration and Community Services Directorate only.
Information that is relevant to the other directorates will be
considered in the other relevant OSC meetings. Members
are requested to submit their comments, observations and
recommendations in respect of the Executive’s proposals
with particular reference to the Regeneration and
Community Services Directorate proposals, to the meeting
of the Executive on 09 February 2016.
Members are requested to bring their copies of the
Executive report with them to the meeting (hard copies will
not be provided). The report is available at the following
website:http://centralbeds.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx
?CId=577&MId=4921&Ver=4
14

Work Programme 2015/16 and Executive Forward Plan
Members of the Committee will receive information
regarding the Work Programme 2015/16 and Executive

Forward Plan.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
Page 7
CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL
At a meeting of the SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE held in Council Chamber, Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford on
Thursday, 10 December 2015.
PRESENT
Cllr D McVicar (Chairman)
Cllr B Saunders (Vice-Chairman)
Cllrs D Bowater
F Firth
C C Gomm
Ms A M W Graham

Members in Attendance:

Cllrs

J Kane
K C Matthews
R Morris

Cllrs J G Jamieson

Leader of the Council
and Chairman of the
Executive
Executive Member for
Regeneration

J N Young
Officers in Attendance:

Mr M Coiffait
Mr J Longhurst
Mr J Partridge
Mrs R Preen
Ms H Price
Mrs G Stanton
Ms S Templeman

Public

– Director of Community Services
– Director of Regeneration and
Business
– Head of Governance
– Scrutiny Policy Adviser
– Head of Business Performance
– Chief Communications Officer
– Senior Finance Manager

0

SCOSC/15/39 Members' Interests
None.
SCOSC/15/40 Chairman's Announcements and Communications
The Chairman informed the Committee that as a result of a previous request of
the Committee, a response had been received from Anglian Water (AW), which
outlined that they were integrating several service improvements which
included; developing a clearer process for assessing planning applications;
considering the role of planning conditions; producing a planning guide for
developers; ensuring a proactive approach with town and parish councils; and
using parish news letters to circulate information.
AW had accepted that their consultation responses could be clearer and that
improved internal communication would enhance the service provided. It had
also been agreed that CBC would signpost developers to AW’s own preapplication service where planning applications involved 10 or more dwellings.

Agenda Item 4
Page 8

SCOSC 10.12.15
Page 2

A 3 month trial would begin on 01 January 2016 enabling the Council to consult
AW on all submissions for pre-application advice involving 10 or more
dwellings and the Council would undertake a ‘critical friend’ role in order to
provide feedback to AW on their work streams. A further review meeting would
be organised in April 2016 to assess the progress of the 3 month trial.
The Chairman also highlighted that residents in Downs Road, Dunstable had
expressed concerns regarding a recent Executive Member decision, which may
be considered at a future OSC meeting before a final decision was taken by the
Executive Member in early 2016.
SCOSC/15/41 Minutes
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting of the Sustainable
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 29 October 2015
be confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.
SCOSC/15/42 Petitions
None.
SCOSC/15/43 Questions, Statements or Deputations
None.
SCOSC/15/44 Call-In
None.
SCOSC/15/45 Requested Items
None.
SCOSC/15/46 Executive Members Updates
The Executive Member for Regeneration provided an update relating to the
following: A recent planning application approval for a care home facility in Maulden.
 Work to ensure that S106 agreements were met, enabling planning
applications to proceed at an appropriate pace.
 A 22% increase in Building Control casework, which was generating vital
funds for the Authority.
 Additional jobs created by Amazon in Central Bedfordshire.
 Many businesses within Central Bedfordshire were expanding and
recruiting staff, which reflected the strong position locally.
 Performance in relation to connections to superfast broadband locally.
SCOSC/15/47 5 Year Plan Performance Monitoring
The Leader of the Council delivered a presentation outlining the proposed
approach to delivery and performance management of the 5 Year Plan. The

Agenda Item 4
Page 9

SCOSC 10.12.15
Page 3

Committee were asked to consider whether the proposals, drivers and KPI’s
behind the data were appropriate.
In light of the presentation Members discussed the following in detail: The importance of a focus on improving pavements and roads, which was
an important issue for residents. It was also crucial to expand upon
accessibility to shops and utilities.
 The critical importance of public transport in relation to satisfaction of place
and that rural satisfaction may decline if it was not prioritised appropriately.
In response the Leader acknowledged that public transport was an
important issue for many but there were economical difficulties to overcome
with regards to subsidised transport. Striking a balance between provision
and demand was crucial and it was agreed that good transport links could
also support independent living.
 The importance of encouraging volunteering locally, with an emphasis on
volunteer led strategies.
 The benefit of gathering data with regards to health and wellbeing in order
to gauge how successful a drive towards the use of leisure facilities had
been. In response the Director for Community Services confirmed that the
data with regards to usage was available and would be presented to the
next OSC meeting.
 The importance of a proactive and robust approach to reducing crime
despite much of the control laying in the hands of the police and other
agencies.
NOTED the presentation and agreed the ongoing approach with regards
to delivery and performance monitoring of the 5 Year Plan.
SCOSC/15/48 Quarter 2 Budget Monitoring Report
The Senior Finance Manager delivered a presentation to the Committee,
detailing the financial position of the Directorate along with areas of
underspend, overspend and outstanding debt for Quarter 2.
In light of the presentation Members agreed it would be useful to receive a
breakdown of the capital variance between underspend, overspend and
slippage within future reports, along with a reference to previous debt levels
which the Directors agreed to include from Quarter 3 onwards.
NOTED the report.
SCOSC/15/49 Work Programme 2015/16 and Executive Forward Plan
AGREED the work programme agreed subject to the addition of the
following: The Development Strategy position update in January 2016.
 A report on progress and future direction of SEMLEP in March 2016
 The Parking and Passenger Transport Strategy in March 2016.
 Waste Management update in March 2016.
 The Local Plan in March 2016.
 The Development Strategy in March 2016.

Agenda Item 4
Page 10

SCOSC 10.12.15
Page 4

(Note:

The meeting commenced at 10.00 a.m. and concluded at 11.30
a.m.)

Agenda Item 10
Page 11
Central Bedfordshire Council
Sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny Committee 14th January
2016

Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment,
Identified Priorities for 2016 - 2019
Report of Cllr Brian Spurr Executive Member for Community Services
Advising Officer: Marcel Coiffait, Director of Community Services
marcel.coiffait@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk
This report relates to a Key Decision
Purpose of this report
1.

This report informs Members of the three priorities and emerging issue
that have been identified through the Community Safety Partnership
Strategic Assessment. The priorities have been recommended by the
Community Safety Partnership Executive and are subject to Member
consultation.

2.

The Committee are invited to consider and discuss the proposed
priorities, and recommend they are adopted by the Council Executive.

RECOMMENDATIONS
The Committee is asked to:
1. Recommend that the Executive adopt the three Community Safety
Partnership Strategic Assessment Priorities identified for Central
Bedfordshire for 2016 - 2019.

Overview and Scrutiny Comments/Recommendations
1. Each year, the Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny
Committee considers the CSP’s annual priorities. The committee is asked
to continue to support the work of the CSP, and recommend the new
priorities for 2016 – 2019.

Agenda Item 10
Page 12

Performance Review, Central Bedfordshire, October 2014 – September
2015
3.

There were 13,165 crimes which is an increase of 1,024 (8%) when
compared to the same period the previous year.

4.

There were 3,082 serious acquisitive crime1 offences, which is an
increase of 163 (5%) when compared to the same period the previous
year.

5.

There has been a decrease of 149 domestic burglaries (15%) when
compared to the same period the previous year.

6.

There were 3,397 domestic abuse (DA) incidents reported, which is an
average of 283 incidents per month. This is an increase of 17% from
the previous 12 months.

Hidden Harms
7.

The Community Safety Partnership (CSP) is continuing the approach
to look at priorities on the ‘hidden harms’ that affect our residents and
our communities.

8.

The term “hidden harm” describes the experiences of people affected
by substance misuse, abuse, modern day slavery and exploitation.
People will often suffer in silence; their circumstances are often not
known to services. They often do not know where to turn for help and
the impact of their experience can have a deep and long-lasting
consequence on their lives. These impacts can include physical harm,
impaired patterns of parental care, higher risk of emotional and
physical neglect or abuse, poverty and material deprivation,
inappropriate substitute caring roles, and exposure to drug and alcohol
using culture.

9.

The CSP is committed to supporting not only an increase in
understanding and awareness of the hidden harms our communities
face, but encouraging those who are suffering to have the confidence
to come forward and seek help from the Partnership and our services.

10.

The CSP has built up a strong base to support crime reduction, and
offers crime prevention and reassurance in the community through
awareness raising events, survey’s, email alerts, magazine articles and
attending vulnerable locations with partners. This will continue.

1 Serious acquisitive crime consist of robbery, domestic burglary, theft of motor vehicle and
theft from motor vehicle

Agenda Item 10
Page 13
11.

The CSP will continue to monitor burglary offences and offending
series at the monthly CSP Tasking meeting. Community Safety
officers are standing members of Bedfordshire Police’s monthly Force
Tasking Meeting where crime series are discussed and actions agreed.

12.

Current risks within Central Bedfordshire do not come from traditional
crimes, but from hidden harms as described above. By working
together we will ensure a better support structure and positive
environment is in place for our communities.

Protecting the Vulnerable
13.

There are four parts to this priority:





Modern Day Slavery (MDS)
Trafficking of Human Beings (THB)
Prevent
Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE)

14.

MDS and THB is a complex crime which takes a number of different
forms, including sexual, labour, criminal and other exploitation
(including domestic servitude). It is a global problem that transcends
age, gender, ethnicity and culture. MDS includes victims that have
been brought from overseas as well as vulnerable people from within
the UK. These victims are forced to illegally work against their will in
many different sectors.

15.

In the period between December 2009 – November 2014 there were
35 crimes of MDS in Bedfordshire. The majority of offences were in
Central Bedfordshire and were labour exploitation related. It is
recognised nationally that MDS is under reported so the numbers are
likely to be far higher.

16.

Toddington Motorway Services is a recognised hotspot for THB and
migration. This location has been identified due to it being one of the
first places where lorry drivers take a break having left Dover or the
Euro Tunnel. In 2015 Bedfordshire Police reported that the number of
immigration arrests from this location increased by 85%.

17.

Prevent is part of the Government’s strategy aimed at preventing
people from being radicalised, becoming terrorists or supporting
terrorism.

18.

The Counter-Terrorism and Security Act received Royal Assent in early
2015. The act places the Prevent Programme on a statutory footing
and also places a duty on ‘Responsible Authorities’. The local authority
is now one of those Responsible Authorities.

19.

In Bedfordshire there is a longstanding extremist scene in Luton, which
has more recently presented in Bedford Borough. The highest risk of

Agenda Item 10
Page 14
an attack is the risk of an unpredictable lone offender attacking people
in the county.
20.

There has been a shift of focus to Syria. A number of Bedfordshire
residents are currently fighting, and some have died, in the Syrian
conflict.

21.

CSE is not new; however, through media coverage and through local
incidents a wider public awareness has been created. The NPSCC
indicate that 5% of children in the UK suffer contact sexual abuse at
some point during their childhood.

22.

In January 2015 the National Working Group were commissioned by
the Chief Executive Officers and the three Local Safeguarding
Children’s Boards (LSCB’s) of Bedfordshire to identify any weaknesses
that needed to be addressed in order to help agencies prevent and/or
manage CSE in Bedfordshire

23.

Part of this review looked at Central Bedfordshire’s current response to
CSE. The review advised that “authority staff demonstrated a broad
understanding of the nature of CSE, and it’s presence in the county.
There were examples of good practice with robust arrangements at an
operational level”.

24.

The review provided six strategic recommendations. These have been
taken forward and are currently being worked on by the Bedfordshire
CSE Strategic Group, Chief Executive Officer’s Group and the LSCB’s
in a joint partnership approach.

25.

The offences that make up the four parts of this priority are by their
nature hidden from view. Partnership working plays an essential role in
identifying and reducing the risk of harm to vulnerable children, young
people and adults. Any person from any background can be a victim of
these hidden harms.

26.

Intelligence gaps are a key issue across Central Bedfordshire, with
very little intelligence being submitted on these hidden harms from
partner agencies. As front line training is rolled out and officers
understand their duty, and what to look out for in the community, it is
expected that this intelligence feed into Bedfordshire Police should
improve.

Dealing with Domestic Abuse
27.

Domestic Abuse (DA) causes significant harm to not only the victims
but also the wider family, it also accounts for just over 10% of all crime
recorded in Central Bedfordshire. In 51% of all DA incidents a child
was present, and 34% of DA incidents reported were at a repeat
location.

Agenda Item 10
Page 15

28.

In Central Bedfordshire high risk victims are supported by the MultiAgency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC). This is a monthly
multi-agency group which meets to review cases and create a safety
plan for the victim and any children. Of the 313 MARAC cases heard
in the past 12 months only 10 cases were for victims or perpetrators
from a black or minority ethnic (BME) group. This is disproportionate to
the demography of Central Bedfordshire, and highlights possible under
reporting from this community.

29.

Within Central Bedfordshire the highest BME group is the Gypsy and
Traveller community. A survey carried out with this group in early 2014
advised that 83% confirmed DA was an issue in their community. As a
result of these findings the CSP lead on a Task and Finish Group
whose aim is to improve engagement with that community, leading to
awareness of services in respect of DA.

30.

DA is not limited to adults; there is an increasing awareness of DA
within teenage relationships. In Central Bedfordshire only 5% of
victims who reported a DA incident between October 2014 –
September 2015 were aged under 18yrs. The majority of victims were
aged 18 – 24 yrs. These numbers are much lower than expected.

31.

Victims assessed as high risk receive extensive support opportunities
from a range of partners. This is essential to those who are high risk,
but 65% of DA victims in Central Bedfordshire are assessed medium
risk and therefore not heard at the MARAC. These victims do not
receive bespoke support services.

32.

Working with victims who are assessed as medium risk is essential to
prevent an escalation of the violence, stop the cycle of abuse and to
offer support and advice as the victim requires.

Protecting our Communities
33.

There are two parts to this priority:



34.

Nuisance Motorcycles
Street Drinkers

Nuisance motorcycles have been a significant issue in Central
Bedfordshire for some years, with the number of reported incidents
increasing steadily over the past three. Up until last year the issue was
seasonal, with increases at Easter, but there has been a shift in this
trend with nuisance behaviour becoming more prevalent much earlier
in the year.

Agenda Item 10
Page 16
35.

The majority of reports of nuisance motorcycles come from the south of
Central Bedfordshire, with 35% of all incidents being in Houghton
Regis and a further 28% in Dunstable.

36.

Although there are a high number of reports of nuisance motorcycles
on open land associated with off road biking, there are also a large
number of reports from residential areas. Reports in residential areas
are mainly of youths aged 13-17yrs riding bikes without helmets and
sometimes with more than one person on the bike. Complaints are
made for noise nuisance, vehicles being ridden on public pathways,
and vehicles almost colliding with residents and young children.

37.

Between April – October 2015 there were 30 reports of moped /
motorcycle fires, the majority of these taking place in the south of
Central Bedfordshire. In the period between October 2014 –
September 2015 there were 169 offences of stolen motorcycles or
mopeds, 86% of these were in the south of Central Bedfordshire.

38.

Street Drinking is a complex issue which has a negative impact on the
quality of lives of local residents and businesses. It is classed as ASB
predominately due to outcomes from street drinking, such as littering,
noise nuisance, abusive and disorderly behaviour. It also has a
detrimental impact on the health of those who take part in street
drinking.

39.

Street drinking is a concern for local residents in Central Bedfordshire
with 15% of those surveyed advised the main concern in their area was
“people being drunk or rowdy in public places”.

40.

In the period between October 2014 – September 2015 there were 367
ASB incidents reported to Bedfordshire Police that related to street
drinking in Central Bedfordshire. Alcohol related ASB is not accurately
recorded and it is felt that this number may not a true reflection of the
issue, and that accurate recording would raise this number.

41.

There are three evident hotspots for street drinking in Dunstable,
Leighton Buzzard and Biggleswade. In these three hotspots there are
a core group of street drinkers who are a mix of males and females
aged 30 – 50 yrs. The majority of those who are known have housing
provision so the issue in Central Bedfordshire is not necessarily linked
to homelessness. Many of the individuals are entrenched drinkers with
complex needs; from alcohol dependency, mental health, historic and
current abuse, low incomes and unemployment.

42.

Addressing street drinking related ASB and reducing harm to street
drinkers themselves are two very different objectives. A number of
different interventions are needed to deal with this issue, some of
which will be enforcement dealing with the ASB elements and others
will be engaging and supporting the street drinkers and dealing with
their individual needs.

Agenda Item 10
Page 17

Emerging Issue – Sexual Abuse
43.

The term sexual abuse covers a wide range of abuse acts directed
towards an individual’s sexuality, including sexual assault, rape, sexual
coercion, sexual bullying and female genital mutilation.

44.

Sexual abuse can be defined as any behaviour perceived to be of a
sexual nature which is unwanted and takes place without consent or
understanding. Sexual abuse affects people of all genders, culture and
age groups and is a criminal offence.

45.

In the period between October 2014 – September 2015 there were 271
sexual offences in Central Bedfordshire reported to Bedfordshire
Police. This is an increase of 54% when compared with the previous 12
months. 34% of reported offences were cases of historic abuse.

46.

In the period between October 2014 – September 2015 there were 100
offences of rape recorded in Central Bedfordshire, an increase of 32%
when compared to the previous 12 months.

47.

In Central Bedfordshire 89% of all sexual offences recorded involved a
female victim and of the 271 reported 19% of them had a victim who
was aged under 18 years.

48.

It is known nationally that sexual abuse offences are significantly
under-reported with 90% of rapes going unreported and it is therefore,
believed locally that the vast majority of offences are not reported to
the police.

49.

In view of the continuing increase in reporting of sexual offences and
the known under reporting, the CSP need to consider what their
response is to sexual abuse in Central Bedfordshire.

Reason/s for decision
50.

For local authorities there is a statutory requirement for a “crime and
disorder committee” with the power to review and scrutinise decisions
taken by Responsible Authorities in relation to their crime and disorder
functions.

51.

In Central Bedfordshire this scrutiny is undertaken by the Sustainable
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee, which has undertaken
to carry out a review at least once a year of the CSP priorities.

Agenda Item 10
Page 18
Council Priorities
52.

The agreement of the three CSP priorities, and the subsequent work in
reducing offences, incidents and offending, will make a significant
contribution to the quality of life experienced by local residents and
communities.

53.

Joint work on the priorities by all of the community safety statutory
partners will also contribute to the delivery of the Council’s Medium
Term Plan (“Your Priorities 2012 – 2016”) priority of ‘Enhancing your
local community’. Delivery of these priorities will contribute to the
reduction of crime, anti-social behaviour, fear of crime and increase
public confidence.

54.

Joint work on the priorities by all of the community safety statutory
partners will also contribute to the delivery of the Council’s Five Year
Plan (2015 – 2020) priorities of ‘Protecting the vulnerable promoting
wellbeing’ and Creating stronger communities

Corporate Implications
Legal Implications
55.

Under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, the Council has
a statutory duty to do all that it reasonably can to reduce crime and
disorder in its’ area. The Crime and Disorder Act also places a
statutory duty on the Council, along with the other Responsible
Authorities (Police, Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group,
Bedfordshire and Rescue Service, Probation2), to produce an annual
Strategic Assessment which identifies crime and disorder priorities for
our area.

56.

The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 sets out the
requirement for the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) and the
CSP to have due regard for each others priorities and plans. The
timing of the Partnership Strategic Assessment and CSP Plan have
ensured the PCC is informed of our priorities and the Office of the PCC
has the opportunity to refresh the Police & Crime Plan.

57.

The Counter Terrorism and Security Act 2015 by putting the existing
Prevent programme on a statutory footing means that the local
authority must have a panel to support vulnerable people being drawn
into terrorism and by prioritising this issue the local authority is having
due regard to the need to prevent people from being drawn into
terrorism which is now a statutory duty.

2

The Community Rehabilitation Company and the National Probation Service

Agenda Item 10
Page 19
Financial Implications
58.

The majority of work is undertaken using existing resources within each
partners’ organisation. The PCC is responsible for the Community
Safety Fund across Bedfordshire and the Partnership will bid for
funding to provide additional support to existing resources where
suitable.

59.

Financially the CSP saves on resources; by pulling together to work on
priority areas that affect them all, using an intelligence led approach. If
resources are required for projects, crime prevention initiatives or
engagement events, the Partnership agrees, prior to commencing, the
resource that can be committed; from communication support, front line
engagement, printing or joint funding from internal budgets.

60.

From time to time the Home Office open funding opportunities which
the Partnership can bid for, such as Prevent work, Domestic Abuse or
general crime and disorder. Where possible the Partnership take these
opportunities to enhance current or look at new ways of working.

Risk Management
61.

There are risks and challenges to working in partnership with the
statutory partners of the CSP, should the Council not agree with the
identified priorities.

62.

The strategic risk register includes a strategic risk relating to the
fragility of our partners, which includes Police, Clinical Commissioning
Group and Probation. The strategic risk focuses on the fragility of our
partners, as a result of the significant changes and pressures they
face, including budgetary pressures, transfers of responsibilities,
geographical factors, confusing accountabilities and increasing
complexities. These factors increase the risk that services to our public
could be compromised.

63.

There is a risk to the Council should it not agree with the partnership
data and analysis that has been provided. If new priorities were to be
agreed without supporting data and evidence, the process would not
stand up to scrutiny, and would not be based on intelligence. This
would make it difficult to gain support from partners to work with us on
any new issue.

64.

There is a risk to the Council should they not agree the priorities, that
they would be failing to discharge statutory responsibilities and failing
to deliver the Council's priorities.

65.

There are potential community implications if work on the high risk
identified priorities is not undertaken. The three priorities have scored

Agenda Item 10
Page 20
highest in the risk matrix, been highlighted through public consultation,
and are known to affect Public Confidence and Fear of Crime.
66.

The adoption of the agreed annual priorities by the Executive will
ensure that the Council’s statutory duties are met and helps mitigate
the risk of failing to deliver the Council’s priorities.

Public Health
67.

The work of the CSP contributes to making Central Bedfordshire a
safer place to work and live. Work on the three priorities will help
support victims and lower the number of abuse incidents they have,
support their wellbeing, and in turn support the local and national
economy.

Community Safety
68.

Reducing harm to those who are suffering and given them the
increased confidence to report crimes that are hidden in our community
will enable the right level of care and support to be provided to our
vulnerable victims.

69.

The detrimental impact that abuse causes has continued to be a key
concern for local residents. In agreeing this as a priority to be worked
on by the partnership, it should help improve the quality of life for our
communities; help reduce crime, the fear of crime and the
consequences of abuse itself.

70.

Fear of crime is raised by local residents as a concern, and working on
crimes that impact the most, in terms of victims and community impact,
will support our co-ordinated approach to decrease fear in the
community. Abuse incidents, together with becoming a repeat victim,
have a significantly negative impact on our residents.

Sustainability
71.

The prevention and enforcement work that will be undertaken on the
three priorities over the next three years, can make a significant
contribution to the quality of the physical environment, tackle those
responsible for crime, disorder and prevent some offences in Central
Bedfordshire.

Procurement
72.

The CSP follows the Procurement Procedure Rules for Central
Bedfordshire Council when procuring services and goods. The
governance for commissioning of funds is set out within the Terms of
Reference for the CSP

Agenda Item 10
Page 21

Equalities Implications
73.

Central Bedfordshire Council has a statutory duty to promote equality
of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and
victimisation and foster good relations in respect of nine protected
characteristics; age disability, gender reassignment, marriage and
civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex
and sexual orientation. By working on the three priorities and
emerging issue, there will not be unlawful discrimination or
contradictions under the European Convention of Human Rights.

74.

Statistics and data have been used and analysed to identify the high
risk issue to the CSP and our communities. All members of our
communities have been taken into account, and there have been no
groups omitted from the process.

75.

The impact of working on the proposed priorities will not discriminate
against individuals or groups. In fact the work around Domestic
Abuse and anti-social behaviour will support minority groups and
individuals who may not have felt supported, or engaged.

76.

An Equality Impact Assessment has highlighted areas of concern due
to low level reporting of Domestic Abuse by vulnerable groups. By
recommending the three priorities the CSP we will also be addressing
high risk areas identified in the Equality Impact Assessment.

Conclusion and next Steps
77.

It is essential that Central Bedfordshire CSP has an agreed set of
priorities, and identified an emerging issue which have been informed
by the Partnership Strategic Assessment.

78.

The three priorities proposed are based on a robust assessment of the
key community safety issues in Central Bedfordshire.

79.

By working on the three priorities, and conducting research on our
emerging issue, the CSP will contribute significantly to the
achievements of the Council’s plan for delivering its key priorities over
the next three years.

80.

The proposed CSP priorities will be taken forward to the Council
Executive for recommendation and agreement.

Agenda Item 10
Page 22
Appendices
None
Background Papers
81.

The following background papers, not previously available to the
public, were taken into account and are available on the Council’s
website:
None

Agenda Item 13
Page 23

Central Bedfordshire Council
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
14 January 2016

Draft Budget 2016/17 and Medium Term Financial Plan
Report of Cllr Richard Wenham, Executive Member for Corporate Resources
(cllr.richard.wenham@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk)
Advising Officers: Charles Warboys, Chief Finance Officer
(charles.warboys@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk)
This report relates to a non-Key Decision
Purpose of this report
1. The report allows Members the opportunity to review the Council’s draft
Budget for 2016/17 and Medium Term Financial Plan, which was
presented to Executive on 12 January 2016.
2. The report proposes the draft Budget for 2016/17 and updates the
Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) approved by Council in February
2015. The Financial Settlement for local government was released on
17 December 2015.
3. The announcement covers many complex areas of funding and in the
short time available before publishing this report, it has not been
possible to reflect this.
4. The Financial Settlement was very significantly worse for Central
Bedfordshire than had been anticipated both in absolute and
comparative terms. Whilst the full details have still to emerge and will
require careful analysis, on the face of it the loss of Government
funding support is 94% over the life of the Medium Term Financial Plan
or £28.1M in cash terms. Moreover, the greatest reductions are in the
early years of the Plan.
5. Therefore, it will be necessary to identify proposals for responding to
this dramatic reduction in funding support from Government over and
above the proposals contained in the draft Budget/updated MTFP once
the full details of the Settlement have been fully assessed.
6. What is clear is that Government has made the assumption in its
financial modelling that councils will raise council tax by both the 2%
1

Agenda Item 13
Page 24
precept earmarked for adult social care and an assumed 1.75% for
inflation in each of the next four years.
7. This is in addition to the significant efficiencies contained in the draft
Budget/updated MTFP.
RECOMMENDATIONS
The Committee is asked to:
1. consider the Council’s Draft Budget for 2016/17 and Medium
Term Financial Plan; and
2. submit its comments, observations and recommendations in
respect of the Executive’s proposals to the meeting of the
Executive on 9 February 2016.
Executive Summary
Members are requested to bring along the following papers issued for the
meeting of the Executive on 12 January 2016 to this Committee meeting:
1. Draft Budget 2016/17 and Medium Term Financial Plan 2016/17 –
2019/20.
Council Priorities
8. The Council approved the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) for
2015/16 to 2018/19 in February 2015. The MTFP has been updated
and extended to 2019/20 and an initial draft Budget for 2016/17
prepared.
9. The Council’s priorities are:


Enhancing Central Bedfordshire.



Great Resident Services.



Improving education and skills.



Protecting the vulnerable; improving wellbeing.



Creating stronger communities.



A more efficient and responsive Council.

These priorities are reflected in the budget proposals included in this
report.
2

Agenda Item 13
Page 25

Corporate Implications
Legal Implications
10. See Executive papers.
Risk
11. See Executive papers.
Financial Implications
12. See Executive papers.
Equalities Implications
13. See Executive papers.

3

Agenda Item 13
Page 26
Timetable Milestones
14. The key milestones in the timetable for Council to agree its budget in
February 2016 are set out in the below:
Timetable Milestones

Date
Early January 2016

Body
Public

12th January 2016

Executive

14th January 2016

Sustainable
Communities
Overview & Scrutiny

25th January 2016

Social Care, Health &
Housing Overview &
Scrutiny

28th January 2016

Children’s Services
Overview & Scrutiny

2nd

February 2016

Corporate Resources
Overview & Scrutiny

9th February 2016

Executive

25th February 2016
29th February 2016

Council
Council

4

Outcome
Budget papers made available
to Public and Public
Consultation commences
Considers Draft Budget and
MTFP
Consideration of efficiencies
and savings and draft budget
proposals

Recommends Final Budget &
MTFP
Approves Budget & MTFP
Reserve Council Meeting in
case of delay in receiving
notification of other precepts.

Agenda Item 13
Page 27

Central Bedfordshire Council
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
14 January 2016

Draft Capital Programme 2016/17 – 2019/20
Report of Cllr Richard Wenham, Executive Member for Corporate Resources
(cllr.richard.wenham@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk)
Advising Officers: Charles Warboys, Chief Finance Officer
(charles.warboys@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk)
This report relates to a non-Key Decision
Purpose of this report
1. The report allows Members the opportunity to review the Council’s draft
Capital Programme, which was presented to Executive on 12 January
2016.
RECOMMENDATIONS
The Committee is asked to:
1. consider the Council’s Draft Capital Programme 2016/17 to
2019/20; and
2. submit its comments, observations and recommendations in
respect of the Executive’s proposals to the meeting of the
Executive on 9 February 2016.
Executive Summary
Members are requested to bring along the following papers issued for the
meeting of the Executive on 12 January 2016 to this Committee meeting:
1. Draft Capital Programme 2016/17 to 2019/20.

1

Agenda Item 13
Page 28
Council Priorities
2. The Council approved the Capital Programme for 2015/16 to 2018/19
in February 2015. The Capital Programme has been updated and
extended to 2019/20.
3. The Council’s priorities are:


Enhancing Central Bedfordshire.



Great Resident Services.



Improving education and skills.



Protecting the vulnerable; improving wellbeing.



Creating stronger communities.



A more efficient and responsive Council.

These priorities are reflected in the budget proposals included in this
report.
Corporate Implications
Legal Implications
4. See Executive papers.
Risk
5. See Executive papers.
Financial Implications
6. See Executive papers.
Equalities Implications
7. See Executive papers.

2

Agenda Item 13
Page 29
Timetable Milestones
8. The key milestones in the timetable for Council to agree its budget in
February 2016 are set out in the below:
Timetable Milestones

Date
Early January 2016

Body
Public

12th January 2016

Executive

14th January 2016

Sustainable
Communities
Overview & Scrutiny

25th January 2016

Social Care, Health &
Housing Overview &
Scrutiny

28th January 2016

Children’s Services
Overview & Scrutiny

2nd

February 2016

Corporate Resources
Overview & Scrutiny

9th February 2016

Executive

25th February 2016
29th February 2016

Council
Council

3

Outcome
Budget papers made available
to Public and Public
Consultation commences
Considers Draft Capital
Programme
Consideration of the Draft
Capital Programme

Recommends Final Capital
Programme
Approves Capital Programme
Reserve Council Meeting in
case of delay in receiving
notification of other precepts.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 14
Page 31

Meeting:

Sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Date:

14 January 2016

Subject:

Work Programme 2015 – 2016 & Executive Forward Plan

Report of:

Chief Executive

Summary:

The report provides Members with details of the currently drafted
Committee work programme and the latest Executive Forward Plan.

Contact Officer:

Rebecca Preen, Scrutiny Officer

Public/Exempt:

Public

Wards Affected:

All

Function of:

Council

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS
Council Priorities:
The work programme of the Sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny Committee
will contribute indirectly to all 5 Council priorities. Whilst there are no direct
implications arising from this report the implications of proposals will be details in full in
each report submitted to the Committee.
RECOMMENDATION(S):
1.

that the Sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny Committee
(a)

considers and approves the work programme attached, subject to
any further amendments it may wish to make;

(b)

considers the Executive Forward Plan; and

(c)

considers whether it wishes to add any further items to the work
programme and/or establish any Task Forces to assist it in
reviewing specific items.

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme
1.

Attached is the currently drafted work programme for the Committee.

2.

The Committee is now requested to consider the work programme attached
and amend or add to it as necessary.

Agenda Item 14
Page 32
Overview and Scrutiny Task Forces
3.

In addition to consideration of the work programme, Members may also wish
to consider how each item will be reviewed i.e. by the Committee itself (over
one or a number of Committee meetings) or by establishing a Member Task
Force to review an item in greater depth and report back its findings.

Executive Forward Plan
4.

Listed below are those items relating specifically to this Committee’s terms of
reference contained in the latest version of the Executive’s Forward Plan to
ensure Members are fully aware of the key issues Executive Members will be
taking decisions upon in the coming months. The full Executive Forward Plan
can be viewed on the Council’s website at the link at the end of this report.

Ref

Issue

1.

Adoption of the Planning Obligations Strategy

Indicative Exec
Meeting date
9 February 2016

2.

Environmental Enhancement Strategy

9 February 2016

3.

ESIF funding ERDF Innovation Bridge programme

9 February 2016

4.

Houghton Hall Park Renaissance and Renewal Project

9 February 2016

5.

Community Safety Partnership Priorities 2016 - 2017

9 February 2016

6.

Dunstable Leisure Centre and Library Redevelopment

7.

Passenger Transport Strategy

9 February 2016
5 April 2016

8.

Waste Transfer Station Operational Contract Award

5 April 2016

9.

Housing Strategy

5 April 2016

10.

Local Transport Plan 4

5 April 2016

Non Key Decisions

Conclusion
5

Members are requested to consider and agree the attached work programme,
subject to any further amendments/additions they may wish to make and
highlight those items within it where they may wish to establish a Task Force
to assist the Committee in its work. This will allow officers to plan accordingly
but will not preclude further items being added during the course of the year if
Members so wish and capacity exists.

Appendix – Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme.

Agenda Item 14
Page 33
Background reports:
Executive Forward Plan (can be viewed at any time on the Council’s website) at the following
link:- http://www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/modgov/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=577&RD=0

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A – SC OSC Work Programme 2015/16
OSC Date
17 March 2016

Report Title
Housing Strategy

Description
To receive a report on the Council's Housing Strategy

17 March 2016

South East Midlands Local Enterprise Partnership

To receive a presentation as previously requested by Members

17 March 2016

Parking Strategy

To receive a report detailing information regarding the Council’s
Parking Strategy

17 March 2016

Passenger Transport provision

To receive information regarding changes to the passenger
transport provision and the impact upon residents

17 March 2016

Waste Management update

To receive an update with regards to waste management

17 March 2016

The Local Plan

To receive a report regarding the Local Plan

17 March 2016

The Development Strategy

To receive a report regarding the Development Strategy

17 March 2016

Environmental Enhancement Framework

To comment on the approach and scope of the framework and to
provide input as to how the body of evidence is best utilised by the
Council.

Agenda Item 14

Page 35

This page is intentionally left blank

